Subject:
Body:

BMJ - Decision on Manuscript ID BMJ.2015.027246.R1
28-Sep-2015

Dear Dr. Elfar

Manuscript ID BMJ.2015.027246.R1 entitled "Shorter length of stay is associated with decreased early
mortality after hip fracture: a total cohort study in the United States"

Please respond to the additional comments of the reviewers.
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First, however, please read these four important points about sending your revised paper back to us:
1. Deadline: Your revised manuscript should be returned within one month.

2. Online and print publication: All original research in The BMJ is published with open access. The full text
online version of your article, if accepted after revision, will be the indexed citable version (full details are
athttp://resources.bmj.com/bmj/about-bmj/the-bmjs-publishing-model), while the print and iPad BMJ will
carry an abridged version of your article, usually a few weeks afterwards. This abridged version of the
article is essentially an evidence abstract called BMJ pico, which we would like you to write using a
template and then email it to papersadmin@bmj.com (there are more details below on how to write this
using a template). Publication of research on bmj.com is definitive and is not simply interim "epublication
ahead of print", so if you do not wish to abridge your article using BMJ pico, you will be able to opt for
online only publication. Please let us know if you would prefer this option.

If/when your article is accepted we will invite you to submit a video abstract, lasting no longer than 4
minutes , and based on the information in your paper’s BMJ pico evidence abstract. The content and focus
of the video must relate directly to the study that has been accepted for publication by The BMJ, and
should not stray beyond the data.

3. Open access publication fee: The BMJ is committed to keeping research articles Open Access (with
Creative Commons licences and deposit of the full text content in PubMedCentral as well as fully Open
Access on bmj.com). To support this we are now asking all authors to pay an Open Access fee of £3000 on
acceptance of their paper. If we accept your article we will ask you to pay the Open Access publication fee;
we do have a waiver policy for authors who cannot pay. Consideration of your paper is not related to
whether you can or cannot pay the fee (the editors will be unaware of this), and you need do nothing now.

4. How to submit your revised article: Log into http://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/bmj and enter your
Author Center, where you will find your manuscript title listed under "Manuscripts with Decisions." Under
"Actions," click on "Create a Revision." Your manuscript number has been appended to denote a revision.

You may also click the below link to start the revision process (or continue the process if you have already
started your revision) for your manuscript. If you use the below link you will not be required to login to
ScholarOne Manuscripts.

(Document Task not available)

You will be unable to make your revisions on the originally submitted version of the manuscript. Instead,
revise your manuscript using a word processing program and save it on your computer.

Once the revised manuscript is prepared, you can upload it and submit it through your Author Center.
When submitting your revised manuscript, you will be able to respond to the comments made by the
reviewer(s) and Committee in the space provided. You can use this space to document any changes you
make to the original manuscript and to explain your responses. In order to expedite the processing of the
revised manuscript, please be as specific as possible in your response to the reviewer(s).

As well as submitting your revised manuscript, we also require a copy of the manuscript with changes
highlighted. Please upload this as a supplemental file with file designation ‘Revised Manuscript Marked
copy’.

IMPORTANT: Your original files are available to you when you upload your revised manuscript. Please
delete any redundant files before completing the submission.

Reviewer: 1
Recommendation:

Comments:
Comments from Peter Nordstrém

In general I would say that the authors have done a good job in responding to my comments and
questions, and I feel that the manuscript has improved. I have a few nhew comments in response to the



changes made.

I'm not sure about the authors’ intention concerning the supplemental Tables and what I believe is a
supplemental Figure. These are not referenced to in the Results, the supplemental Tables are marked
“Tables” and some of the Figures are not marked at all.

For me supplemental Table 1A-L could be removed since most of the information of interest is presented in
supplemental table 1M, and also graphically in what I believe is supplemental Figure 1. Please ad also LOS
1-5, that probably is the reference, for the supplemental Tables.

In a sensitivity analysis presented in the statistics section the authors suggest that: “To control for a
greater proportion of early discharges in New York State patients, a sensitivity analysis was performed by
evaluating the odds of mortality between 15 and 45 days after hospital admission in all patients alive at 14
days post-admission, which created a theoretical LOS of 14 days for all patients in the cohort...”

I do not understand this, and I could be wrong. We clearly have two different systems in the USA and in
Sweden. In USA 90% of all patients are discharged to rehabilitations centres with a much shorter LOS in
hospital than in Sweden. From the Table I can see that 82.1% of the patients have a LOS of less than 11
days. For me that means that most of the patients with a longer LOS have complications or are generally
frail with more comorbid conditions (as also evident from Table 1). This is important, because in our
Swedish cohort the number of comorbid conditions did not clearly increase with longer LOS, and dementia
clearly decreased. So in a model where those that die before a LOS of 14 days are removed, but those with
longer LOS (e.g. 11-14 days) due to complications or more comorbidities will still be at higher risk of death
after 14 days. Also, in general the risk of death is highest the first days after surgery. Thus, I do not
understand how this analysis could adjust for the different systems, and that healthier patients are
discharged early in the USA. In my mind this analysis will control for the generally increased risk of death
early after surgery. I suggest that you remove the text “To control for a greater proportion of early
discharges in New York State patients”, or remove this sensitivity analysis if there is no other purpose.

In the BMJ paper we could not analyse whether the discharge location influenced the risk of death. The
authors have also commented this. However, in a recent published study in JAMDA, in a similar material,
we did also have that information available. I encourage the authors to study the paper.

What is most important/interesting with this article is if we could learn from the different systems to
increase our knowledge concerning how hip fractures patients should be optimally cared for in the period
after the fracture. This question is of increasing importance with an increasing number of elderly and tight
economic situations in many countries. To give some examples from Table 1 it is clear that a significant
portion of the patients is given “non-surgical” treatment. In Sweden basically all patients are surgically
treated, since we know that death is much higher in those not surgically treated. As of now the second
paragraph in the Discussion is discussing the fact that we did no subgroup analysis of those not surgically
treated. This simply relates to the fact that there were basically no such patients. This is no criticism
towards the current manuscript given that the actual number of patients not operated in Sweden is not
easily found in published papers. Furthermore, in Sweden there are guidelines stating that all patients
should be operated within 24 hours (and almost all are), while in this material the mean time to surgery is
1.8 days. In the analyses performed both non-surgical treatment and longer time to surgery was also
associated with higher risk of death. It is also of interest that the 30 day post-discharge mortality was only
5.1%, whereas 3.9% died in hospital. This should be compared to our 30 day post-discharge mortality that
was 5.8%, whereas 5.0% died in hospital. In summary I feel that the Discussion is well balanced but the
different systems compared to in Sweden could perhaps be further emphasized in an Editorial with a more
in-depth evaluation of the differences, and perhaps especially how optimal care after a hip fracture should
be organized.

Please emphasize throughout the manuscript that you have analysed 30 day post-discharge mortality.
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All required revisions to this paper as previously reviewed have been made by the authors; this has

strengthened the paper considerably. I recommend publication at this time.
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Statistical Review:
In my view the new version of this manuscript adequately addresses all the questions asked by the
reviewers. There are three very minor points that need checking:

1) In their letter of response to reviewers (page 2) the authors write that as part of their sensitivity
analysis —“However, it found that for each 1 day increase in length of stay for these patients, there would
have been an associated 6% increase in their offs of death during 11-30 day time period after hospital
admission over the study period (95% confidence interval 1.05 - 1.08; p<0.001).” In the next page (page
3 of the reply) they state that in the Results this increase was of 7% with an associated 95%CI of 1.07 -
1.10. This is consistent with what is presented in the manuscript but not with the paragraph above. Please
check.

2) Looking at Figure 2, the result for 2009 appears to be an outlier. If possible please can they check the
influence of this extreme year on their results? It could just be reported as a single sentence in either the
same Figure or in the Discussion.

3) In their response to reviewers letter, the authors comment that they had originally planned to use Cox
models but that the assumption of proportional hazards was not met. Please can this also be reported in
the Limitations/Conclusions as it is a change from the original approach that could be useful for readers.
This also explains why they use Kaplan-Meier estimates but do not report hazard ratios.

These are all very minor points that have minor impact on the current manuscript.
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